
January 26, 2016                                                  Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                 Page 1 of 4 
 

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF SILVER CITY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

Grant County Administration Center, 1400 Hwy. 180, Silver City, NM 
January 26, 2016, 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present:      Also Present:   
Michael S. Morones, Mayor    Alex C. Brown, Town Manager-Finance Director 
Cynthia Ann Bettison, District 1    Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk  
Lynda D. Aiman-Smith, District 2   Robert L. Scavron, Town Attorney 
Jose A. Ray, Jr., District 3    Ed Reynolds, Police Chief 
Guadalupe Cano, District 4    Joseph Arredondo, Police Sergeant 
 
              
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Morones called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.    
 
2.  CEREMONIES – None. 
 
3.  PROCLAMATIONS - None. 
 
4.  PUBLIC INPUT – Dr. Mark Donnell expressed his concern about the amount of time it was taking to repair the 
traffic light at the multi-lane intersection of U.S. Highway 180 and 14th Street. He commented that traffic accidents 
may increase at that intersection and he encouraged whatever department was involved with it to make utmost haste in 
getting it fixed. 
 
5.  COUNCIL COMMENTS - The Council commented on the following: upcoming events in Santa Fe and that 
many of the Council members and Grant County folks would be at the Legislature to make sure Silver City's and Grant 
County's needs were heard at the State with all of the legislators; how it was the first day of absentee voting at City 
Hall and people were encouraged to use their right to vote; thanks to the citizens and staff members that attended and 
participated in the recent "Conversation with a Councilor" event with Councilor Aiman-Smith; a warning to watch out 
for bikers, motorcycles, etc. during the warmer weather; request for people to be patient with the bridge closure and 
traffic light repair; an upcoming organizational meeting of the Senior Olympics of Grant County on January 30th; how 
the upcoming opening of the Silco Theater and the recently opened Light Hall Theater at Western New Mexico 
University illustrates that Silver City is moving in the right direction, etc. 
 
6.  CHANGES TO AGENDA – None. 
 
7.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Regular Meeting on January 12, 2016 - Councilor Aiman-Smith moved to 
approve the minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of January 12, 2016. Councilor Bettison seconded. Mayor 
Morones stated there was a motion and a second to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 12, 2016. 
He asked for a vote of all those in favor, and all 4 Councilors said aye. He asked if any were opposed, and there were 
none. Motion carried. 
 
8.   REPORTS -  
A. Report by Bianca Padilla, Program Coordinator of the Juvenile Probation and Parole Office. Ms. Padilla  
reported on the partnership between the Town of Silver City and the Juvenile Probation and Parole Office (JPPO) and 
provided and extensive report on the success of their 19 year Continuum Model in Grant County and how they tried to 
use consistency and intervention as much as they could with 13 different programs. Ms. Padilla said they wanted the 
community to see that kids were value contributors and capable of a lot more. She said in the last 5 years in Grant 
County the overall delinquency rate was reduced by 57 percent, repeat offenders were reduced by 42 percent, and 
felony offenses were reduced by 64 percent. She said in Fiscal Year 2013-2014 there were 292 delinquency offenses, 
but in 2015 delinquency offenses were reduced to 174, first time offenders went from 142 to 79, and repeat offenders 
went from 150 to 95. She said they had seen the public change their perception of the kids, and they have seen the kids 



January 26, 2016                                                  Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                 Page 2 of 4 
 

building lasting relationships with community mentors and site sponsors. She said the Silver City Police Department 
was having less negative contacts with juvenile offenders, and the youth had become stakeholders in the community. 
She gave thanks for the great partnership with the Town of Silver City for providing a lot of oversight with their fiscal 
management. There was further discussion about how people could volunteer and Mayor Morones said he appreciated 
their work with the kids, etc. Manager Brown recognized Ms. Padilla as the JPPO Officer of the year for New Mexico. 
He commended Ms. Padilla, Gary Stailey, and the JPPO staff for all the positive things they had done for the 
community and the kids. 
 
B. High Desert Humane Society report by Heidi Ogas. Ms. Ogas said they have an agreement with the Town of 
Silver City to take in and house dogs and cats from the Town, and the contract would run through the fiscal year, but 
they tracked their numbers on a calendar year. She said the impound numbers were similar from year to year based on 
the different months because they had high and low seasons. She said the overall intake was down from the previous 
year and that it continually goes down. She said overall for the years 2000 to 2015 they saw the intake decrease by 40 
percent, the adoption rate doubled, and euthanasia was down by 33 percent so they were excited about that. She said 
the spay and neuter program called the HALT Program issued out over $270,000 back into the community in the form 
of spay and neuter coupons. She said they would like to see the return to owner rate go up and they hoped the new 
microchip program would cause an increase; that all adopted animals that were 4 months and over were microchipped. 
She said their long term plan for 5 to 10 years was to build a new adoption facility with better long term care for 
animals for adoption and for visitation so people could get to know an animal and the adoption rate would increase 
even more. She reported they had a cremation service and a Memorial Garden, and they hoped to buy a new 
crematorium.  There was further discussion about using social media like Facebook to post pictures of animals for 
adoption, how people could bring in their pets to get microchipped during the vaccination clinics for a cost of $25, etc.  
 
C. Staff reports. Police Sergeant Joseph Arredondo reported on the citizen contacts in 2015. He said citizen contacts 
were consensual encounters between citizens and officers out in public where the officer obtains information, and he 
reviewed the information in the Council's meeting packet. He said they use the citizen contact forms to target specific 
areas. There was further discussion. Mayor Morones asked Sergeant Arredondo to please convey to the officers how 
much the Council and citizens at large appreciated their service. Chief Reynolds continued by reviewing the statistical 
comparisons between 2014 and 2015 and stated there were 1,767 arrests in 2015; that 866 of those arrests were for 
Bench Warrants. He continued by reporting the following: the calls of service in 2015 increased from 2014 by 241; the 
number of self initiated calls by an officer decreased from 41,446 in 2014 to 27,939 in 2015 because there was a 
change of programs on how they actually got into the neighborhoods and targeted specific activities for high crime 
areas and high traffic areas, etc.; there were reduced traffic crashes in some areas, but the intersection of Silver Heights 
Boulevard and 14th Street and Hudson Street were still the worst intersections; the crime index/population totals were 
929 in 2014 and 867 in 2015; in 2015 the burglary rate was 95 for residential and 50 for business; larceny continued to 
be the highest crime, but it decreased from 569 in 2013, 487 in 2014, and 473 in 2015;  shoplifting was the highest 
form of larceny; domestic violence went from 549 in 2014 to 537 in 2015; arrests were down 15.25 percent with 1,767 
in 2015 and 2,085 in 2014; citations dropped 54.24 percent with15,807 in 2014 to 7,234 in 2015 and the potential 
decrease in 2015 was because of focused activities they were doing; forcible rapes remained the same with 10 for 2014 
and 10 for 2015; aggravated assaults were down with 45 in 2014 and 42 in 2015; burglaries decreased from 149 in 
2014 to 145 in 2015; damage to vehicles decreased 27 percent from 196 in 2014 to 143 in 2015; robberies decreased 
by 20 percent with 10 in 2014 and 8 in 2015; roadway crashes dropped from 368 in 2014 to 352 in 2015; and Driving 
While Intoxicated dropped from 80 in 2014 and 70 in 2015. He said strategies were in place to focus on various areas 
and the major goal was to get the community involved in organizing effective neighborhood watch programs; citizen 
contacts; school visits, checks, and lectures; downtown foot and bike patrols, etc. He thanked the Council for the 
opportunity to present the information and stated the men and women of the Silver City Police Department were 
working hard to ensure that Silver City was a safe place to enjoy life and raise a family. He also said he disagreed with 
an index the previous year that said Silver City was the seventh most dangerous town in New Mexico; that they could 
look at the statistics and the percentage was based on 10,000 population and 15,000 population. He also stated it was 
illegal to tamper with campaign signs and was contrary to the Town ordinance so people should leave the signs alone. 
There was further discussion. Councilor Bettison commended the force and the civilian employees for all they did for 
the Town. 
 



January 26, 2016                                                  Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                 Page 3 of 4 
 

Councilor Cano moved for a short recess at 7:21 p.m. Councilor Bettison seconded. Mayor Morones said there was a 
motion and a second for a short recess. He asked for a vote of all those in favor, and all 4 Councilors said aye. He 
asked if any were opposed, and there were none. Motion carried.  
 
The Mayor called the meeting back to order at 7:30 p.m. He announced there would be a Regional Science Olympiad 
at Western New Mexico University on January 30th. He asked Manager Brown to give an update on the traffic light 
repair status at the intersection at Silver Heights and 14th Street. Manager Brown said it was a state highway so the 
Town did not have the final say on how it would be repaired, but the state did. He gave a status report and said they 
needed to replace the pedestal and it would cost about $17,000 to $18,000 to repair. He said he would find out from the 
contractor about how long it would take to acquire the pedestal and do the repair. There was further discussion. 
Manager Brown also reported on issues at the Scott Park Sport Complex where the ground was settling and causing the 
turf to sink about 2 to 3 inches in different areas. He said it was settling from the old landfill underneath that was 
closed in 1994; that they had to wait to ensure it was finished settling before they could do major repairs. He said he 
would have to request that the funds that were set aside from the legislative allocation for the concession stand to 
change over to fix the baseball field. He said they had $300,000, but the bid for the concession stand came in at 
$500,000 so they did not have the money to do it, but there were good facilities there to hold good events. He 
explained further. 
 
9.    PUBLIC HEARINGS - None. 
 
10.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None. 
  
11.  NEW BUSINESS - 
A. Approval / Disapproval of Resolution No. 2016-02: a day to honor the Territorial Charter of the Town of 
Silver City, Grant County, New Mexico.  Mayor Morones said he was sponsoring Resolution No. 2016-02. He said 
the Town's Territorial Charter was a phenomenal document; that it made the Town unique and it was a model of self 
rule. He said they had powers in the document that were unheard of, and that federal law prohibited states and 
territories from ever doing it again. He said in a day and time when centralized government and with states trying to 
seize control, which was evident in New Mexico, the ability to self govern was huge. He said one of the Resolution's 
Whereas recitals named a very important person, Juan Patron, who was the first Hispanic Speaker of the House of 
Representatives for the State of New Mexico, and who presided over the action and got it passed and then signed by 
the Governor. He said he was out of Lincoln County as a Representative, but Grant County was in his constituency. He 
said the Town needed to recognize and honor Juan B. Patron much more thoroughly for what he had done for the 
community and getting the Territorial Charter passed. He said it was the last Territorial Charter in the state and, that 
other territorial charters chose to reincorporate under state law, but the Town of Silver City chose to stick with their 
Territorial Charter because of its uniqueness, its power, and the history behind it. He said he had considered bringing it 
up as a proclamation, but he wanted it to be something the Town took pride in year after year as a city holiday. He said 
he would like various organizations to start thinking about celebrating it in the future and to do something special for 
Silver City, and that he hoped Town staff and the Town's Museum could do something small to try to recognize this 
great document which was signed on February 15, 1878. He said the Resolution was designating the closest Saturday 
to that date as the date that it is celebrated. He gave the floor to staff. Attorney Scavron said during his research he 
found out that in the midst of a wild west time, and as you read the charter you could see the concerns of the people at 
the time and the welfare of the people. He said the Charter gave them the rights to run their own school system, 
allowed regulating gambling to preventing unsafe activity in the town, and all were meant to make it a safe town for 
families. He said the motivation of the 1878 Charter was directly responsive to the greed and corruption of Santa Fe 
and the Santa Fe Ring, but they should still keep the Charter. He said it was a model for self government in the state 
and it was the only Territorial Charter; that Santa Fe gave theirs up to be reincorporated under state law. He said it was 
a beautifully written document. He continued by reading information about Juan B. Patron and said his handwritten 
signature was on the Town's Territorial Charter. Tracy Spikes, Museum Director, said they would put together a small 
exhibit at the Museum on February 13th, etc. There was further discussion. Councilor Cano moved to approve 
Resolution No. 2016-02: a day to honor the Territorial Charter of the Town of Silver City, Grant County, New Mexico. 
Councilor Bettison seconded. Mayor Morones said there was a motion and a second to approve Resolution No. 2016-
02: a day to honor the Territorial Charter of the Town of Silver City, Grant County, New Mexico. He asked if there 



January 26, 2016                                                  Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                 Page 4 of 4 
 

was further discussion, and there was none. He asked for a roll call vote. Councilor Cano voted aye; Councilor Ray 
voted aye; Councilor Aiman-Smith voted aye; and Councilor Bettison voted aye. Motion carried. 
 
B. Council direction on the automated recycling program. Manager Brown said staff had been working on the 
automated recycling collection for the past 6 months and they had been monitoring how much each resident had been 
putting out for recycling. He said they were looking at purchasing 65 and 95 gallon containers for residential, and for 
commercial they were looking at only cardboard so they would only purchase 450 gallon tubs for commercial entities. 
He said the side loader would be able to pick up all of the dumpsters and tubs so they did not have to purchase a front 
end loader for commercial. He said they were looking at purchasing 2 brand new side loaders for regular garbage 
collection and then use 2 of the regular garbage collection vehicles for recycling. He said they were currently paying 
$212,000 per year for recycling, and their budget was $360,000, but the difference was made up by selling recylables, 
and they got credit for all of the recyclables that they could sell. He said he would bring a new ordinance to amend the 
rates as well as the requirements for the automatic system, etc. He said they were looking at purchasing a pulverizer for 
glass once the Southwest Solid Waste Authority got on its feet; that they may be able to sell the pulverized glass as 
clean sand. He provided further details and asked the Council if it was okay to continue, that in the next few months he 
would bring an ordinance for financing and also bid awards for equipment. There was further discussion. Mayor 
Morones asked the Council if there was any objection, and there was none. He asked Manager Brown if he had his 
direction and he said yes.  
 
C. Approval / Disapproval of election workers for the regular municipal election to be held on March 1, 2016. 
Clerk Mackie requested the Council's approval of the election workers and stated most of them had attending the 
election school that she was required to conduct before the election. She provided further information about the 
upcoming election. Councilor Bettison moved to approve the election workers for the regular municipal election to be 
held on March 1, 2016. Councilor Aiman-Smith seconded. Mayor Morones said there was a motion and a second to 
approve the election workers for the regular municipal election to be held on March 1, 2016. He asked if there was 
further discussion, and there was none. He asked for roll call vote. Councilor Bettison voted aye; Councilor Aiman-
Smith voted aye; Councilor Ray voted aye; and Councilor Cano voted aye. Motion carried. 
 
D. Approval / Disapproval of Resolution No. 2016-03: adopting recount/recheck costs for the regular municipal 
election to be held on March 1, 2016. Clerk Mackie stated it was the first time she was requesting a Resolution to 
adopt recount/recheck costs. She said she had the costs available each year, but felt it would be informative to the 
Council and to the candidates if they chose to do an application with her for a recount/recheck after the election. She 
said there were costs involved which were outlined on page 2 of the Resolution. There was further discussion.  
Councilor Cano moved to approve Resolution No. 2016-03: adopting recount/recheck costs for the regular municipal 
election to be held on March 1, 2016. Councilor Ray seconded. Mayor Morones said there was a motion and a second 
for the approval of Resolution No. 2016-03: adopting recount/recheck costs for the regular municipal election to be 
held on March 1, 2016. He asked if there was further discussion, and there was none. He asked for roll call vote. 
Councilor Cano voted aye; Councilor Ray voted aye; Councilor Aiman-Smith voted aye; and Councilor Bettison voted 
aye. Motion carried. 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT – Mayor Morones asked for a motion to adjourn. Councilor Bettison moved to adjourn at 8:20   
p.m., and Councilor Aiman-Smith seconded. Mayor Morones stated there was a motion and a second to adjourn. He 
asked for a vote of all those in favor, and all 4 Councilors said aye. He asked if any were opposed, and there were 
none. Motion carried. 
 
       /s/ 
       ___________________________________ 
       Michael S. Morones, Mayor 
 
       Attest: 
       /s/ 
       ___________________________________ 
       Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk 


